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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited

Opinion

I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of TPI Polene: Power Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and of TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited
(the “Company™), respectively, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group and the Company, respectively, as at 31 December 2020 and their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards (TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor ’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Group and the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions that
is relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my
opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Based on my consideration and professional judgement, I have determined that there are no key audit matters
to communicate in my report.

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd., aThai limited liaklity cornpany and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
membser firms affliated with KPMG Internationai Cooperative ['KPMG Internstional’), a Swiss entity.
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Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to note 3(b) to the financial statements describing the effect
of the change in the Company’s accounting policy adoption from 1 January 2020. The corresponding figures
presented are based on the audited financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 after

making the adjustments described in note 3(b).

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consclidated and separate financial statements and my
auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date ofthis auditor's
report.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and I
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the correction be made.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with TFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

My obiectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the aundit. I also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; -

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control. ' ’

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such 'disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit
opinion.

1 communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
1 identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safegnards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 1 determine that a
matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

@L(.

(Bunyarit Thanormcharoen)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 7900

KPMG Phoomchai Aundit Itd.
Bangkok
10 February 2021






TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
31December 31 December 31 December 31 December 1 January
Assets Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 2019
{Restated) (Restated)

(in thousand Baht)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivaleats [ 1,790,584 689,356 1,649,322 551,434 259,124
Trade accounts receivable 5,31 2,425,686 2,148,276 2,425,686 2,148,276 1,530,704
Other receivables 148,498 54,585 146,931 53,027 104,526
Short-term loan to related party i 5 - - - 801 -
Receivables and advances to related parties § 40,139 61,001 40,139 61,027 35,857
Inventories 7 1,248,860 1,052,505 1,248,860 1,052,505 587,732
Other current financial assets 31 1,496,238 2,650,606 1,496,238 2,650,696 3,960,652
Other current assets ’ 8,062 10,467 7,807 10,446 12,156
Total current assets 7,158,067 6,667,086 7,014,983 6,528,212 6,490,751
Non-current assets
Other non-current financial assets 31 188,049 186,532 l 5.,183 5,261 5,337
Investment in subsidiaries 8 - - 329,933 319,986 190,911
Property, plant and equipment 9 35,605,612 30,770,444 35,601,238 30,770,444 24,642,820
Right-of-use assets 3 10 650,619 - 650,619 - -
Leaschold rights - - - - 113
Advances for plant and equipment 58,590 116,238 58,590 116,238 106,953
Deferred tax assets 27 82,262 91,011 82,262 91,011 91,699
Other non-current assets 31,953 21,263 31,953 . 21,263 12,483
Total non-current assets 36,617,085 31,185,488 36,759,778 31,324,203 25,050,316
Total assets 43,775,152 37,852,574 43,774,761 37,852,415 31,541,187

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



TPI Poléne Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilitles

Short-term loans from financial institutions
Trade accounts payable

Other payables

Payables and advances from related parties
Current portion of lease Habilities

Current portion of debentures

Interest payable

Income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease linbilities

Debentures

Non-current provisions for employee benefits

Decommissioning costs

Total non-current liabilifies

Total liabilities

Note

11, 31
512
13

310, 1
11, 31

4

310,11
11, 31
15
316

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2020 2019 2019
(Restated) (Restated)
(in thousand Baht)

239,625 - 239,625 - -
432,516 439,833 432,516 439,833 377,095
791,216 1,583,960 791,009 1,583,898 1,611,326
66,227 93,985 66,197 93,891 79,792

14,849 - 14,849 - -

4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - -
53,238 34,860 53,238 34,860 14,531
47,466 35,555 47,316 35,555 35,622
139,057 146,076 139,057 146,076 118,708
5,784,194 2,334,269 5,783,807 2,334,113 2,237,074

645,181 - 645,181 - -
£,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 4,000,000
152,705 151,119 152,705 151,118 87,698
264,934 256,853 264,934 256,855 167,958
9,062,820 8,407,974 9,062,820 8,407,974 4,255,656
14,847,014 10,742,243 14,846,627 10,742,087 6,492,730

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Liabilities and equity Note

Equity
Share capitai: ‘ 17
Authorised share capital
(8,400 million ordinary shaves, par
value at Baht 1 per share)
Issued and paid share capital
(8,400 million ordinary shares, par
value at Baht 1 per share)
Shares premium:
Shares premium on ordinary shareg
Retained earnings
Appropriated
1egal reserve 18
Unappropriated
Other componcn;c of equity
Equity attribute to owners of the Company
Nor-controlling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2020 2019 2019
(Restated) {Restated)
(in thousand Bahi)
8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000
8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000
14,580,886 14,580,886 14,580,886 14,580,886 14,580,886
840,000 763,640 840,000 763,640 533,356
5,107,424 3,365,960 5,107,424 3,365,960 1,534,043
(176) (158) {176) (158) 92
28,928,134 27,110,328 28,928,134 27,110,328 25,048,377
4 3 - - -
28,928,138 27,110,331 28,928,134 27,110,328 25,048,377
43,775,152 37,852,574 43,774,761 37,852,415 31,541,107

The accompanying aotes form aa integral part of the financial statements.



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Restated)
{in thousand Baht)

Revenue
Revenue from sale of power and goods 19,28 6,333,227 6,338,038 6,333,227 6,338,038
Revenue from adders 19, 28 4,786,123 4,233,163 4,786,123 4,233,163

11,119,350 10,571,201 11,119,350 10,571,201
Caost of sales of power and goods (6,027,657) (5,529,730) (6,027,657 (5,529,730
Gross profit 5,091,693 5,041,471 5,091,693 5,041,471
Net foreign exchange gain - 91,637 - 91,637
Investment income 20 42,860 78,694 35,427 75,671
Other income 21 281,792 164,293 281,765 164,270
Total income 5,416,345 5,376,095 5,408,885 5,373,049
Distribution costs 22 (66,437) (75,679) (66,437} (75,679)
Administrative expenses 23 (432,729) {(432,150) (432,477) (424,442)
Net foreign exchange loss (3,991) - (3,991) -
Total expenses (503,157) (507,829%) (502,905) (500,121)
Profit from operations 4,913,188 4,868,266 4,905,980 4,872,928
Finance costs 26 (285,182) (159,476) (285,350) (159,476)
Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries - - 7,006 (4,662)
Profit before income tax expense 4,628,006 4,708,790 4,627,636 4,708,790
Tax expense 27 (122,181) (101,982) {121,812) (101,982)
Profit for the year 4,505,825 4,606,808 4,505,824 4,606,808

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial staternents.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
(Restated)
{in thousand Baht)
Qther comprehensive income (expensc)
Ttems that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations (18) (250) - -
Share of other comprehensive income (expense)

of subsidiaries - - (18) (250)
Total items that will be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss (18) (250) (18) (250)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 15 - (30,759) - (30,759)
Income tax relating to items that

will not be reclagsified 27 - 6,152 - 6,152
Total .items that wili not be reclassified

to profit or loss - (24,607) - (24,607)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year,

net of tax (18) (24,857) (18) (24,857)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,505,807 4,581,951 4,505,806 4,581,951
Profit attributable to:

Owners of the parent 4,505,824 4,606,808 4,505,824 4,606,808

Non-controlling interests 1 - - -
Profit for the year 4,505,825 4,606,808 4,505,824 4,606,808
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to:

Owners of the parent 4,505,806 4,581,951 4,505,806 4,581,951

Non-contrelling interests 1 - - -
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year 4,505,807 4,581,951 4,505,806 4,581,951
Basic earnings per share (in Bahi) 29 0.536 0.548 0.536 0.548

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
{Restated)
(in thousand Baht)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 4,505,825 4,606,808 4,505,824 4,606,808
Adjustments to reconcile profit to cash receipts (payments)
Depreciation 875,925 806,873 875,925 806,873
Interest income (28.319) (63,570) (21,386) (60,523)
Finance costs 285,182 159,476 285,350 159,476
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (5,659) (55,368) (5,632) (55,368)
Reversal of loss on inventories devaluation (3,985) - (3,985) -
Gain on disposal equipment - (14) - (4
(Gain) loss on fair value adjustment 3,980 (7,979) 3,980 (7,979)
Share of (profit) loss of subsidiaries

accounted for using equity method - - (7.,006) 4,662
Provision for employee benefits 2,978 37,408 2,978 37,408
Tax expense 122,181 101,982 121,812 101,982

5,757,608 5,585,616 5,757,860 5,593,325

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade accounts receivable (277,410) (617,572) {277,410) (617,572)
Other receivables (99,232) 48,994 (99,063) 48,835
Receivables and advances to related parties 7,898 (25,156) 7,924 (25,170)
Inventories (192,370) (464,773) (192,370) {464,773)
Other current assets (3,185) 1,729 (2,951) 1,750
Other non-current assets (10,6%0) (8,780) {10,650) (8,780)
Trade accounts payable (7,317) 62,738 (7,317 62,738
Other payables (222,759) 42,515 (222,904) 42,538 .
Payables and advances from related parties . (27,758) 14,161 (27,694) 14,099
Other current liabilities (7,019) 27,368 (7,019 27,368
Provisions for employee benefits (1,392) 4,746) (1,392) (4,748)
Net cash generated from operating 4,916,374 4,662,094 4,916,974 4,669,612
Taxes paid (101,521) (95,209) {101,302) (95,209)
Corporate income tax refund received 5,590 - . 5,590 -
Net.cash from operating activities 4,820,443 4,566,885 4,821,262 4,574,403 A

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment

Advances payment for machine

Decrease in equity and debt instraments

Increase in other long-term investments

Cash outflow on loan to related party

Proceeds from repayment of loans to related party
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary
Cash outflow on addition investment in subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from short-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of short-term loans from financial institutions
Proceeds from short-term loan from related party
Repayment of short-term lean from related party
Payment of lease liabilities

(2019: Payment by a lessee for reduction of the oulstanding

liability relating to a finance lease)
Finance costs paid
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Proceeds from issue of debentures

Net cash from financing activities

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Restated)
(in thousand Baht)
34,632 64,730 26,624 63,262
(5,930,795) (6,380,163) (5,926,421) (6,380,163)
- 30 - 30
(137,688) (496,795) (137,688) (496,795)
1,150,578 1,317,935 1,150,478 1,317,935
- (181,331} - . -
(6595,000) - (695,000) (800)
695,000 - 695,800 -
(2,959) (105,988) (2,959) (105,988)
- - - (27,999)
(4,885,832) (5,781,582) (4,889,166) {5,630,518)

341,529 - 341,529 -
(105,000) - (105,000) -
] ; 105,000 -
- - (105,000) .
(12,625) - (12,625) -
(369,912) (131,568) (370,080) (131,568)
(2,688,000) (2,520,000  (2,688,000)  (2,520,000)
4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
1,165,992 1,348,432 1,165,524 1,348,432

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended Year ended
31 Pecember 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
. (Restated)
(.in thousand Baht)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents,
before effect of exchange rates 1,100,603 133,735 1,097,920 292,317
Effect of exchange rate changes (50) (257) (32) o)
Cash and cash equivalents from changes in
holding of investmenits in subsidiary 475 105,914 - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,101,028 239,392 1,097,888 292,310
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 689,556 450,164 551,434 259,124
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,790,584 689,556 1,649,322 551,434
Non-cash transactions
Other payables - plant and equipment 791,009 1,360,994 791,009 1,360,994
Advances for plant and equipment 58,590 116,238 58,590 116,238

The accompanying notes form an imegral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

@

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the
Thai language. These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language
statutory financial statements, and were approved and authorised for issue by the audit committee, as
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company on 10 February 2021.

General information

TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited, the “Company”, is incorporated in Thajland and has its
registered office at 26/56, TPI Tower, Chan Tat Mai Road, Tungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (“SET”) on 5 April 2017.

The ultimate parent company during the financial year was TPI Polene Public Company Limited,
“parent company”, which is incorporated in Thailand and is the major shareholder and the parent of the
Company and owned 70.24% of the Company’s issued and paid-up share capital.

The principal business of the Company are manufacturing and distributing electricity and refuse derived
fuel (RDF), organics waste and distributing diesel and natural gas 12 stations, Details of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are given in note 9.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”)
and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions and applicable rules and
regulations of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission.

New and revised TERS are effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
The initial application of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in certain of the Group’s
accounting policies.

The Group has initially applied TFRS - Financial instruments standards which comprise TFRS 9
Financial Instruments and relevant standards and interpretations which have no material impact on the
financial statements and TFRS 16 Leases disclosed impact from changes to significant accounting
policies in note 3(a).

In addition, the Group has not early adopted a number of new and revised TFRS, which are not yet
effective for the current period in preparing these financial statements. The Group has assessed the
potential initial impact on the financial statements of these new and revised TFRS and expects that there
will be no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b)  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded in the notes to the financial statements to the
nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

(¢c) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

(i) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 4(i) and 10 Leases: )
- whether an arrangement contains a Jease;
- whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension options;
- whether the Group exercise termination options;
- whether the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of the assets to lessees.

(ii) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties at 31 December 2020 that have a

significant risk of resulting in a material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
Jiabilities in the next financial year is included in the following notes:

Note 4(i) Determining the incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liabilities;

Note 15 Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actnarial assumptions;

Note 16 Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
TESOUrces;

Note 27 Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against
which deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can
be utilised; and

Note 31 Determining the fair value of financial instruments on the basis of significant

unobservable inputs.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
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3  Chbange in accounting policies

(a) TFRS 16 Leases

From 1 January 2020, the Group has initiall adogted TFRS 16 on contracts previously identified
as leases according to TAS 17 Leases and TFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains
a lease using the modified retrospective approach.

Previously, the Group, as a lessee, recognised payments made under operating leases and relevant
Jease incentives in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Under TFRS
16, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. If a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract based on stand-alone
selling price (transaction price). As at 1 January 2020, the Group and the Company recognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, as a result, the nature of expenses related to those leases
was changed because the Group recognised depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest expense
on lease liabilities.

On transition, the Group also elected to use the following practical expedients:

- ?0 not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of
ease term,

- use hi:uds_i’ght when determining the lease term; o .

- apply a single discount rate to a porifolio of leases with similar characteristics; and

- exclude inifial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset.

Consolidated Separate
-financial financial
Impact from the adoption of TFRS 16 statements statements
(in thousand Baht)
At I January 2020
Increase in right-of-use assets . 642,426 642,426
Decrease in advances to related parties (12,964) (12,964)
Increase in lease liabilities {629,462) (629,462)
Consolidated Separate
financial financial
Measurement of lease liability statements statements
(in thousand Baht)
Operating lease commitment as disclosed at 31 December 2019 866,397 866,397
Service agreement that does not qualify (1,276) (1,276)
Extension option of the lease term 136,780 136,780
1,001,901 1,001,901
Present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2020 629,462 629,462
Finance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2019 - -
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2020 629,462 629,462
Weighted-average incremental borrowing rate (% per annum) 3.9 3.9

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities shown above were presented as part of Energy & Utilities and
Pefrol & gas stations segments, respectively.
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(b) Changes in accounting policy for investments in subsidiaries in separate financial statements

The Company changed the accounting policy for recognition and subsequent measurement of
investments in the separate financial statements from the cost method to the equity method. Under
the cost method the investments are carried at cost and only dividends received by the Company
from the subsidiaries are recognised in profit. Under the equity method investments in subsidiaries
are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently the carrying value of the investments are adjusted for
the Company’s share in profit or loss, other comprehensive income and dividends received. As the
Company has significantly expanded its business through investment in subsidiaries , the Company
believes that the equity method better reflects the rights of its shareholders to profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and accumulated equity from subsidiaries than the cost method. The change
in this accounting policy is carried out in accordance with Thai Accounting Standard No. 27,
Separate Financial Statements. The Company has applied this policy since 1 January 2020 and
retrospectively adjusted the previous periods’ separate financial statements for comparison purpose

as follows;
Separate financial statements
At 1 January 2019 At 31 December 2019
Impact of Impact of
changes in changes in
As accounting As accounting
reported policies Restated reported policies Restated
(in thousand Baht)
Statement of
[financial position
Non-current assets
Investments in
subsidiaries 191,457 (546) 190,911 325,444 (5,458) 319,986
191,457 {546) 190,911 325,444 (5,458) 319,986
Equity
Retained eamnings - :
unappropriated 1,534,681 (638) 1,534,043 3,371,260 (5,300) 3,365,960
Other components
of equity - 92 52 - (158) (158)
1,534,681 (546) 1,534,135 3,371,260 (5,458) 3,365,802
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Separate financial statements

At 1 January 2019 At 31 December 2019
Impact of Tmpact of
changes in changes in
As accounting As accounting
reported policies Restated reported policies Restated
(in thousand Baht)
Statement of
comprehensive
income
Share of profit
(loss) of
subsidiaries - (638) (638) - (4,662) {4,662)
Profit for the year 3,699,597 (638) 3,698,959 4,611,470 (4,662) 4,606,808
Share of other ‘
comprehensive
income (loss) of
subsidiaries using
equity method - 92 ' 92 - (250) (250)
Other
comprehensive
income (expense)
for the year, net
of tax (8,708) 92 (8.616) (24,607) (250) (24,857)
Total ,
comprehensive
income (loss) for
the year 3,690,889 (546) 3,690,343 4,586,863 (4,912) 4,581,931
Earnings per
share (basic)
{(in Baht) 0.440 - 0.440 0.549 (0.001) 0.548
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(@)

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group™)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method for all business combinations when control is transferred to
the Group, as describe in subsidiaries section, other than those with entities under common control.

The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.

Goodwill is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the recognised amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquires, less the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date, Any gain
on bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group. Consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration and share-based payment awards
of the acquiree that are replaced mandatorily in the business combination. If a business combination
results in the termination of pre-existing relationships between the Group and the acquiree, then the
lower of the termination amount, as contained in the agreement, and the value of the off-market element
is deducted from the consideration transferred and recognised in other expenses.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition, and remeasured at fair
value at each reporting date. Subsequent changes in the fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

A contingent Hability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a liability
represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as legal fees,
and other professional and consulting fees are expensed as incurred.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports. provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or
additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognized at that date. '
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(®)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Non-controlling interests

At the acquisition date, the Group measures any non-controlling interest at its proportionate interest in
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree. '

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. '

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interests and other components of equity. Any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income or expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using
the equity method.

Interest in subsidiaries is accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the separate financial statements
include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity- accounted
investees, until the date on which significant influence, control or joint control ceases.

Disposal of investments in the separate financial statements

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

If the Company disposes of part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part

sold is determined using the weighted average method applied to the carrying value of the total holding
of the investment.
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Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated to Thai Baht at the exchange rates at the reporting date.

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Thai Baht at rates approximating the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve, except to extent that the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling interest.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence
or joint contro] is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its
interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint
venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial instrumenis

Accounting policies applicable from I January 2020

(d.1) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables, debt securities issued and trade payables are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset and financial liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component or measured at FVTPL) is initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a

significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price. A financial asset
and a financial liability measured at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value.
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(d.2) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets - classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value to
other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or fair value to profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified prospectively from the reclassification date.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is

not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCIL This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets - business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information
is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial asseis to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets; .

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
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Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of
the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVIFPL.

Financial assets - assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

- contingent évents that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features; and

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets - subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

at FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
at amortised interest method, The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses.
cost Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any: gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
Debt These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income,
investments at calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and
FVOCI losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments at recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
FVOCI represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains

and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities - classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FEVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

(d.3) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially atl of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises & financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

(d.4) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Accounting policies applicable before 1 January 2020

Investments in other debt and equity securities

Debt securities and marketable equity securities held for trading are classified as current assets and are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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Debt securities that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
beld-to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are stated at amortised cost, less any
impairment losses. The difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt
securities is amortised using the effective interest rate method over the period to maturity.

Debt securities and marketable equity securities, other than those securities held for trading or intended
1o be held to maturity, are classified as available-for-sale investments. Available-for-gale investments
are, subsequent to initial recognition, stated at fair value, and changes therein, other than impairment
losses and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale monetary jitems, are recognised directly in
equity. Impairment losses and foreign exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. When these
investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss. Where these investments are interesi~bearing, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity securities which are not marketable are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The fair value of financial instruments classified as held-for-trading and available-for-sale is determined
as the quoted bid price at the reporting date.

Disposal of investments
On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount

together with the associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

If the Group disposes of part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part sold -
is determined using the weighted average method applied to the carryimg value of the total holding of
the investment,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits and
highly liquid short-term investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of
financing activities for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Trade and other accounts receivable

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration.

A receivable is measured at transaction price less allowance for expected credit loss (2019: allowance
for doubtful accounts) which is determined based on an analysis of payment histories and future
expectations of customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated as follows:

1) Finished goods: Diesel and natural gas are calculated using the first in first out principle.

2) Inventories other than those mentioned in 1) are calculated using the weighted average cost principle.
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Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-
in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating

capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to complete and to make the sale.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gains and losses on disposal of item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the camrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are
recognised in profit or loss. .

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. :

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and other constructions 20 and 30 years
Machinery 5-30 years
Tools and factory equipment 3 - 20 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 - 10 years
Vehicles 10 years
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No depreciation is provided on land, assets under construction and installation and major spare parts
have not been issued.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leases
Accounting policies applicable from 1 January 2020

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a confract is, or contains, a lease. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition
of a lease in TFRS 16.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate pon-lease components and
account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except
for leases of low-value assets and short-term leases which is recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset is measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, and
adjusted for any remeasurements of lease liability. The cost of right-of-use asset includes the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of restoration costs, less any lease incentives
received. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments included fixed
payments less any lease incentive receivable. The lease payments also include amount under purchase,
extension or termination option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise option. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on index or a rate are reconised as expenses in the accounting petiod in
which they are incurred.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments o reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in lease term, change in lease payments, change in the estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or a change in the assessment of purchase,
extension or termination options. When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is

made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or 1s recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

31



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

@

As a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component
on the basis of their relative standalone prices

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether the lease transfers substantially
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the
lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as rental income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of other income. Initial direct costs incurred in arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as rental income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Accounting policies applicable before 1 January 2020

As 2 lessee, leases in terms of which the Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance
leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments
at the inception of the lease, less aconmulated depreciation and impairment losses. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the profit
or loss.

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and lease payments are recognised in
profit or loss on a.straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Contingent lease payments are accounted
for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease
adjustment is confirmed.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a
lease. A. specific asset is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of that specified asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to
the Group the right to control the use of the underlying asset.

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and other

consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on
the basis of their relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable
to separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed
finance charge on the liability is recognised using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Accounting policies applicable from 1 January 2020

The Group recognises allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables, loans to

others and related parties), debt investments measured at FVOCI, contract assets, lease receivables, and
loan commitments issued which are not measured at FVTPL.
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Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of a financial instrument.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables and confract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for all other financial instruments, the Group recognises ECLs equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition or credit-impaired financial assets, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
30 days past due, significant deterioration in financial instruments’s credit rating, significant
deterioration in the operating results of the debtor and existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financjal instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Increased in loss allowance is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or
loss. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the Group recognises an impairment loss
in profit or loss with the corresponding eniry in other comprehensive income.
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Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence of credit-impairment includes significant financial difficulty, 2 breach of contract such as more
than 90 days past due, probable the debtor will enter bankruptcy.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off, are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or Joss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Accounting policies applicable before 1 January 2020

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in
equity and there is objective evidence that the value of the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss even though the financial asset has
not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of held-to-maturity securities carried at amortised cost is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The recoverable amount of available-for-sale financial assets is calculated by reference to the fair value.
Reversal of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss. For financial assets carried at amortised cost and available-for-sale financial assets that
are debt securities, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets that
are equity securities, the reversal is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are

estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or are not yet available for
use, the recoverable amount is estimated cach year at the same time.
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
jts recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous
revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Reversal of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses reco gnised in prior periods
in respect of other non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been & change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised at cost.
Trade and other accounts payable

Trade and other accounts payable are stated at cost.
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plans is a post-employment benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit legal severance pay plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the
same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit
liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit ligbility during
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the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the seftlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Decommissioning costs

The Group recorded provision for decommissioning cost whenever it is probable that there is an
obligation as a result of the past event and reliable amount of obligation.

Decommissioning costs is based on discounting the expected future cash flows of provision for
decommissioning costs. The estimates of decommissioning costs have been determined based on
reviews and estimates by the Group’s own engineers and managerial judgment.

Fuair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its nop-performance risk.

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
transaction.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group measures
assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that
the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the
difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that
difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no
later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed
out.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in, the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. :

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are based on unobservable input.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, value added tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and volume
rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods, generally on
delivery of the goods to the customers. For contracts that permit the customers to return the goods,
revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Therefore the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted
for estimated returns, which are estimated based on the historical data.

Sale of electricity

Income from the sale of electricity is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with delivery units
supplied and price as stipulated in the contract. Incomes from the sale of electricity to Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand (“EGAT”) is entitled to receive ADDER for the period of 7 years
from the commencement of commercial sales. Thereafter, subsequent to this initial period income from
sale of electricity is recognised at normal rates.
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Investment income
Investment income comprises rental income and interest income from investments and bank deposits.
Rental income

Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues.
Interest

Accounting policies applicable from 1 January 2020
Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:

-~ the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.
If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Accounting policies applicable before 1 January 2020

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss at the rate specified in the contract.

Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial periods of time to be prepared for its
intended use or sale.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
joint ventures to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences

"when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that
its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities;
such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted
for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Related parties

Related parties are a person or entity that has direct or indirect control or joint control, or has significant
influence over the financial and managerial decision-making of the Group; a person or entity that are
under common control or under the same significant influence as the Group; or the Group has direct or
indirect control or joint control or has significant influence over the financial and managerial decision-
making of a person or entity.

Segment reporting

Segment results that are reported to the Groﬁp’s CEO (the chief operating decision maker) include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly corporate assets.
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5  Related parties

Relationships with subsidiaries are described in notes 8. Key management and other related parties that
the Group had significant transactions with during the year were as follows:

Name of entities

Key management personnel

TPI Polene Public Co., Ltd.

TPI Polene Power Investment
Co., Ltd.

TPI Polene Power (On Nut) Co., Ltd.

TPI Polene Power (International)
Co., Ltd. (Formerly Zenith
International Power Co., Ltd.)

TPI Deep Sea Port Co., Ltd.

TPI Olefins Co., Ltd.

TPI Polene Power (Songkhla) Co., Ltd.

TPI Solar Power Co., Ltd.

TPI Wind Power Co., Litd.

TPI Polene Bio Organics Co., Ltd.

TPI Service Co., Ltd.

TPI Refinery (1997) Co., Ltd.

Country of
incorporation/
nationality

Thailand

Thailand
Cambodia

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand
Thajland |
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand
Thailand

Thailand
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Nature of relationships

Persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive
or otherwise) of the Company.

Parent, 70.24% shareholding, some
common directors

Subsidiary, 100.00% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.99% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.99% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.99% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.99% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.97% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.97% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary, 99.97% shareholding,
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

"Subsidiary of the parent’s company and

some common directors
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Name of entities

TPI Healtheare Co., Ltd.

TPI Bio Pharmaceuticals Co., Lid.

TPI Commercial Co., Ltd,

TPI Conerete Co., Ltd.

TPI All Seasons Co., Ltd.

Thai Propoxide Co., Ltd.

Thai Nitrate Co., Ltd,

Polene Plastic Co., Ltd.

United Grain Industry Co., Ltd.

BUI Life Insurance Public Co., Ltd.

Thai Plastic Film Co., Ltd.
Thai Plastic Products Co., Ltd.

Pornchai Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Bangkok Union Insurance Public
Co., Ltd.

Hong Yiah Seng Real Estates and
Investment Co., Ltd.

Saraburi Ginning Mill Co., Ltd.

Leophairatana Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Rayong Forest Co., Ltd.

Country of

incorporation/

nationality

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand
Thailand

Thailand
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Nature of relationships

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Subsidiary of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Indirect subsidiary of the parent’s company
and some common directors

Associate of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Associate of the parent’s company and
some common directors

Indirect associate of the parent’s company
and some common directors

Indirect associate of the parent’s company
and some common directors

Some common directors

Some common directors
Some commeon directors

Some common directors
Some commeon directors

Some common directors



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Name of entities Country of  Nature of relationships
incorporation/
nationality
TPI Holding Co., Ltd. Thailand Some common directors

The pricing policies for transactions are explained further below:

Transactions Pricing policies

Sale of goods and electricity power Market price / agreed price
Purchase of goods and services fee Market price / agreed price
Sale of assets Book value / agreed price
Acquisition of investments Book value

Other income Agreed price

Shared service expense Agreed price

Rental Agreed price

Insurance premium Market price

1.65% and 2.13%
MLR - 1.5% and 3.90%

Interest income
Interest expense

Significant transactions for the years ended 31 December with related parties were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)

Parent company
Sale of goods and electricity power 2,046,236 2,205902 2,046,236 2,205,902
Purchase of goods and services fee 2,556,264 2,691,055 2,556,264 2,691,055
Acquisition of investment (see note 8) .- 105,988 - 105,988
Other income 3,821 4,010 3,821 4,010
Interest income 2,005 - 2,005 -
Shared service expense - cost of sale 93,779 93,779 93,779 93,779
Shared service expense - administrative

expense 38,221 38,221 38,221 38,221
Dividend paid 1,888,000 1,770,000 1,888,000 1,770,000
Administrative expenses - 759 - 759
Interest expense 17,967 - 17,967 -
Subsidiaries
Interest income - - - 3
Interest expense ‘ - - 168 -
Other related parties
Sale of goods 1,006 1,539 1,006 1,539
Purchase of goods 5,426 4,747 5,426 4,747
Acquisition of investment (see note 8) 2,959 - 2,959 -
Other income 184 10 184 10
Dividend paid 439 411 439 411
Insurance premium 82,967 70,861 82,967 70,861
Administrative expenses 589 8,505 589 8,505
Interest expense 7,008 - 7,008 -
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)

Key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits 45,217 45,631 45,217 45,631

Post-employment benefits 52 441 52 441
Total key management personnel

compensation 45,269 46,072 45,269 46,072

Balances as at 31 December with related parties were as follows:

Trade accounts receivable Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Parent company g 900,199 558,089 900,199 558,089
Other related parties
TPI Polene Bio Organics Co., Ltd. 1 2 1 2
TPI Concrete Co., Lid. 31 62 31 - 62
TPI All Seasons Co., Ltd. 27 26 27 26
Thai Nitrate Co., Ltd. 2 1 2 1
United Grain Industry Co., Ltd. - 1 - 1
Bangkok Union Insurance Public
Co., Ltd. 5 9 5 9
BUI Life Insurance Public Co., Ltd. 3 12 3 12
Total 900,268 558,202 900,268 558,202

Less allowance for expected credit loss
(2019: allowance for doubtful accounts)

Net 900,268 558,202 900,268 558,202

Expected credit losses (2019 Bad and
doubtful debts) for the year - - - -
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Interest
rate Separate financial statements
Short-term loans to 31 1 31
related party December  January Increase Decrease December
(% per
annum) (in thousand Baht)
2020 :
Parent company 1.650 - 695,000 (695,000) -
Subsidiary
TPI Polene Power (Onnut)
Co., Ltd. 2.125 300 (800) -

800 695,000 (695,800) -
Accrued interest 1 2,005 (2,006) -

Total 801 697,005 (697,806) -
Less allowance for expected

credit loss (2019: Allowance

Jfor doubtful account) - -
Net 801 -
2019
Subsidiary
TPI Polene Power (Onnut)

Co., Ltd. 2.125 - 300 - 800

- 800 - 300
Accrued interest - 3 () 1

Total - 803 (2) 801
Less allowance for expected

credit loss (2019: Aflowance

Jor doubtfil account) - -
Net - 801

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Expected credit losses (2019: Bad and
doubtful debts expense) of loans to for
the year - - - -

Receivables and advance to related parties Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)

Parent company ' 3,508 16,086 3,508 16,086

Subsidiaries

TPI Deep Sea Port Co., Ltd, - - -

TPI Polene Power (Songkhla) Co., Ltd. - - -

TPI Solar Power Co., Ltd. - - -

TPI Wind Power Co., Ltd. - - -

Other related parties

TPI Polene Bio Organics Co., Ltd. 2 2 2 2

United Grain Industry Co., Ltd. - 2,138 - 2,138

BUI Life Insurance Public Co., Ltd. 749 881 749 . 331

Bangkok Union Insurance Public Co., Ltd. 35,634 41,648 35,634 41,648
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Receivables and advance to related parties Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Pornchai Enterprise Co., Ltd. 246 246 246 246
Total 40,139 61,001 40,139 61,027
Less allowance for expected credit loss
(2019: Allowance for doubtful account) - - - -
Net 40,139 61,001 40,139 61,027
Expected credit losses (2019: Bad and
doubtful debts) for the: 3 - 3 3

Trade accounts payable - related parties Consolidated Separate

' financial statements financial statements

2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Parent company 166,918 209,560 166,918 209,560
Other related parties
TPI Polene Bio Organics Co., Ltd. 370 518 870 518
TPI Healthcare Co., Ltd. 1,174 2,313 1,174 2,313
TPI Bio Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. 64 39 64 39
Total 169,026 212,430 169,026 212,430
Interest rate Separate financial statements
31 i1 31 31
December December December December
Short-term Ioans from related party 2019 2020 2019 Increase  Decrease 2020 |
(% per annum) fin thousand Baht)

Subsidiary
TPI Polene Power (International) Co., Ltd. - MLR-1.5 - 105,000  (105,000) -
Total - 105,000 (105,000) -

Less allowance for expected credit loss
(2019: Allowance for doubifil account)
Net

Payables and advance from related parties

Parent company

Other related parties

TPI Concrete Co., Ltd.

TPI Polene Bio Organics Co., Ltd.
Pornchai Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Bangkok Union Insurance Public Co., Ltd
TPI Healtheare Co., Ltd.

Total

R e ]

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
64,000 93,525 63,970 93,431
1,357 433 1,357 433
151 22 151 22
4 4 4 4
504 1 504 1
211 - 211 -
66,227 93,985 66,197 93,891
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Current portion of lease Iiabilities Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)

Parent company 3,639 - 3,639 -
Other related parties :
United Grain Industry Co., Ltd. 1,485 - 1,485 -
Pornchai Enterprise Co., Ltd. 378 - 378 -
Hong Yiah Seng Real Estates and

Investment Co., Ltd. 1,128 - 1,128 -
Saraburi Ginning Mill Co., Ltd. 1,128 - 1,128 -
Leophairatana Enterprise Co., Ltd. 3,384 - 3,384 -
Total 11,142 - 11,142 -
Lease liabilities Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)

Parent company 464,238 - 464,238 -
Other related parties
United Grain Industry Co., Ltd. 153,679 - 153,679 -
Pornchai Enterprise Co., Ltd. 162 - 162 -
Hong Yiah Seng Real Estates and

Investment Co., Ltd. 4,312 - 4312 -
Saraburi Ginning Mill Co., Ltd. 4312 - 4,312 -
Leophairatana Enterprise Co., Ltd. 12,936 - 12,936 -
Total 639,639 - 639,639 -

Significant agreements with related parties

(a) The Company entered into several land, office building and factory building lease agreements with
related parties for 3 years to 30 years were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Non-cancellable operating lease
commitments
Within one year 589 589 589 589
After one year but within five years 98 688 98 688
Total 687 1,277 687 1,277

(b) Several land rental agreements specified that the Company has to decommission the assets from
rental area at the end of contract, causing the Company to set up the decommissioning costs as at
31 December 2020 in amount of Baht 265 million (2019: Baht 257 million) (see note 16).
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(¢) The Company entered into an electricity supply contract with parent company. The parent company
will provide the waste heat to the Company that will be used in the manufacturing process for
electricity. The Company shall supply the electricity solely to the parent company based on certain
percentage as specified in the agreement. The agreement shall remain in full force and effect so long

as, unless it is terminated by mutual agreement in writing of both parties.

(@) On 1 April 2016, the Company entered into sale & purchase and service agreement with the parent
company. The parent company will provide services related to infrastructure, human resources,
purchase and sale of goods and resources and other services whereby the Company agree to pay fee
as specified in agreement. The initial period of the contract is for 3 years which commenced on
1 April 2016 and shall contirue for consecutive period of three years, unless earlier terminated by

either party.

6  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Cash at banks - current accounts

Cash at banks - savings accounts

Cash at banks - savings accounts
(Private Funds)

Total

7 Inventories

Finished goods
Work in process

Raw materials, package and chemical

Spare parts and supplies
Goods in transit

Less allowance for declining in value

Net

Inventories recognised as an expense in

‘cost of sales of goods’:

- Cost

- Reversal of write-down
Net total

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
476 482 476 482
4,652 7,096 1,289 3,924
1,784,570 668,472 1,646,671 533,522
386 13,506 886 13,506
1,790,584 689,556 1,649,322 551,434,
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
" (in thousand Baht)

23,621 28,568 23,621 28,568
474,580 321,062 474,580 321,062
100,666 114,633 100,666 114,633
668,363 612,742 668,363 612,742

2,145 - 2,145 -
1,269,375 1,077,005 1,269,375 1,077,005
(20,515) {24,500) (20,515) (24,500)
1,248,860 1,052,505 1,248,860 1,052,505
6,031,642 5,529,730 6,031,642 5,529,730
(3,985) - (3,985) -
6,027,657 5,529,730 6,027,657 5,529,730

47



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

8

Investment in subsidiaries

Separate
financial statements
Note 2020 2019
(Restated)
{in thousand Baht)
Subsidiaries
At 1 January - as reported 325,444 191,457
Impact of changes in accounting policies 3
- Change in accounting policy for investments
in subsidiaries in separate financial statements (5,458) (546)
At 1 January - restated 319,986 190,911
Acquisition 2,959 133,987
Share of net profit (loss) of subsidiaries 7,006 (4,662)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries (18) - (250)
At 31 December 329,933 319,986

TPI Polene Power Investment Company Limited

On 23 January 2018, TPI Polene Power Investment Company Limited (“TPIPPI”) called for 100% paid-up
share capital and the Company fully paid share capital amounting to USD 125,000 or equivalent to Baht
3.96 million.

On 26 December 2019, the Board of Directors’ meeting pass the resolution to approve the Company to
register the dissolution and liquidation of TPIPPI.

As at 31 December 2020, the registering of dissolution is in the process.
TPI Polene Power (International) Co., Ltd. (formerly Zenith International Power Co., Ltd.)

On 30 August 2019, the Company’s Board of Directors® meeting passed the resolution to approve the
acquisition of shares in TPI Polene Power (International) Co., Ltd, (formerly Zenith International Power
Co., Ltd.), the main objective is to restructure the shareholding of the Group to support business
expansmn Thereafter, on 24 September 2019, the Company obtained control of that company by
acquiring 999,980 shares or equivalent to 99.99% of the paid-up share capital at the price of Baht 105.99
per share, in the amount of Baht 105,987,880.20 from the Parent, thereby become a subsidiary of the
Company.

TPI Deep Sea Port Co., Ltd.

In October 2019, the Company was established TPI Deep Sea Port Co., Ltd. The authorised share capital
of Baht 100,000,000 with 1,000,000 ordinary shares was registered on 11 October 2019. The Company
holds 999,997 shares or 99.99% of the registered capital and TPI Deep Sea Port Co., Ltd. called for 25%
paid-up share capital and the Company fully paid share capital amounting to Baht 24,999,925.
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TPI Polene Power (Songkla) Co., Ltd.

In October 2019, the Company was established TPI Polene Power (Songkla) Co., Ltd. The authorised
share capital of Baht 1,000,000 with 10,000 ordinary shares was registered on 4 October 2019. The
Company holds 9,997 shares or 99.97% of the registered capital and TPI Polene Power (Songkla) Co.,
Ltd. called for 100% paid-up share capital and the Company fully paid share capital amounting to Baht
999,700.

TPI Solar Power Co., Ltd.

In October 2019, the Company was established TPI Solar Power Co., Ltd. The authorised share capital
of Baht 1,000,000 with 10,000 ordinary shares was registered on 4 October 2019. The Company holds
9,997 shares or 99.97% of the registered capital and TPI Solar Power Co., Ltd. called for 100% paid-up
share capital and the Company fully paid share capital amounting to Baht 999,700.

TPI Wind Power Co., Ltd,

In October 2019, the Company was established TPI Wind Power Co., Ltd. The authorised share capital
of Baht 1,000,000 with 10,000 ordinary shares was registered on 4 October 2019, The Company holds
9,997 shares or 99.97% of the registered capital and TPI Wind Power Co., Ltd. called for 100%
paid-up share capital and the Company fully paid share capital amounting to Baht 999,700.

TPI Olefins Co., Ltd,

On 27 March 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting passed the resolution to approve the
acquisition of shares in TPI Olefins Co., Ltd., the main objective is to operate electricity business and
related business. Thereafter, on 4 April 2020, the Company obtained control of that company by
acquiring 99,993 shares or equivalent to 99.99% of the paid-up share capital at the price of Baht 29.596
per share, in the amount of Baht 2.96 million from the related party, thereby become a subsidiary of the
Company.

49



.2

0s

-snonejonb soud pagsijgnd oAet] j0u op Apusnbastod pue pajsy Aoriqnd ore sopIeIpIsqns s Aueduio)) sy JO SUON

"gIpOqUIE.) U] Pa1eIodiod Ul sem YOIIA. “PyT “0)) JUSUMSIAU] JoM0d SUS]od Id.L ydaoxs ‘pue[req [, ur pajeiodIoodl o19M SOLIRIPISNS [V

- - 986'6IE  £€6'6TE prYSTE E0b8TE [FeL
(ymeuriop) ASIsus
- - 186 0L6 000'T 000°1 000°T 000°T L6'66 L6'66 puis wogy A1ass SR "prT “0J3 Jamod PUM TL
(Jueumop) L3100
- - 186 0L6 000°T 000°T 000°1 000°T L6766 L6'66 1g[0s WO AJIOHIDSfe RIS P 0D Jamod ejog Id1.
(RreRnop) SSEAION PUE [0y PAALIIP 122!
- - 186 0L6 000°T 000° 000° 000° L6'66 L6'66 ssnja1 woy Aorpaj derouap 0] (RpPIBUCS) 1omog SURI0d [d.L
(yreiop) ssaursnq pajelar
- - - 6v0°€ - 656°C - 000°1 - 66'66 P ssougsng Aommaafs pe1adp "PYT 07 sugRl0 IL
- - 836%C  866¥C 666'7C 666vT 000°6T 000°62 66'66 66'66 (ywerziop) vopesado ssommsng uog "PYT “0Q Hog Beg dee IdL
(*prT 0D JaM0d RTOTBIIAI]
{RaLop) ssaIsnq usZ, Apemiog) PIT “0D
- - 0S1°901 363901 886°C01 886°601 000°001 000°001 66'66 66°66 ASma apeuIE UL BUNSIAU] (euonzwIsiu]) 9O 9U9]0d IdL
(quewzop}
(ICTH) [ONg PRAKAp 95UJa) WOY 23 Bave]
- - €0LZ8L  SS6'881 005°L81 00281 005°L81 005°281 66'66 66'66 AYo1nos|e AINGLISIP PUe SRR (30N TQ) #m0d ST Td L
(uonniossep oy Fuusidar
10 ssaooxd a1} TT) BIpOqUIE) WY PIeoD
- - Ti's £2I°t LS6'E LS6'E LS6°E LSG'E 00°001 00001  AMOIEOS[S AINGLUSIP PUE jRIND) JUSTMSSAT] om0 SUs[od IdL
S2LDIPISGHS
(g pupsnoys uy) (%)
(pareisay)
610T ooz 6102 00T 6102 ozoe 610¢ 0t0z 6102 070T
Ieaf oY) 10] SUICOU Lmbg 150D renden de-preg JSQISTE
PUSPIAI] diys1oumQ ssamsng Jo odA],

s)uanua)els eroueu} ajeasdog
:SMO[[O] SE 010/ ‘PAPUS USL) $IE9A O} J0J SIUSTIISIATL 9SOY} WOIJ SWOOUT PUAPIAIP ‘610T PU 0TOT 19qUISd(T T¢ JU SE SOLIRIPISqNS UT SJUSTHISIAUL

0707 19qd3([ € PIPUI I8aL ) J0q
S)UI WA LIS [CIOUBULS 37} 0} SANON

soLIBIpISquS §)1 pue payrur] Auedwo)) JAfqnyg 1404 d2ud[od Id.L



15

S6T988'6E €TH6ET £SLGTLE 015007 8% 660°ES 6Y8THT 60T 06T°%Z 0PO'PES'T BIT'SPS'6 0Z0T 4oquda( I€ 3V
- - (65L7TTa) - - £61°E - LLV'661 630°61 - SI3JSUer],
£60°9L9°S - S6LLEYT SQ0°LY1 LIt 0169 S9E'TT $98°8E - LLETI6'E SEONIpPY
TOE0TTPE €eH'6ET LIL'ESY'T SHY'eS L9V 966°TH ¥8y'07T $9LIS0PT 155°595°T 1STT85'S 0707 £xenusp T
. PUE GI0T SRquIadad TE IV
(0g) - - - - {00) - - - - sTesodsi(
- - (e6T'T81'6) - - 6829 - 28L°9£5°8 91Z°6£9 - SIaJSTRI],
00b°FE6D B1E18 1£0°5¥9°T 6LT'EE $0T L 05€'81 £90°8% - 116001 SUOTHPPY
TELSLTLT S01°851 6160668 991°0C £9T £6v°6T PETTOT L1699%°S1 SEE‘9T6 OPE18H'T 6107 Lenuef 11y
1503
(1pog puvsnoy} uf)
oL §)9ssE Tolje[[e)sut sprad SA[OIBA jusmdinba jnsmdinbs AuitoRy - st pue]
SuInOISSIUIINO03(] pue areds Jolepyy 2010 £101081
UCHINDSU0D DUE SamXIJ pime S[00],
JOPUR $1988Y ‘aapwn,g

SIUATUAJE)S [BIOUBU]] PAJEPI{OSUO))

ywdmbs pue jueid ‘Aredoag 6

0207 13qUrsda( T€ PIpud 18ak a7} 104
$)UATIA) ]S [EIDUBUL] Y] 0} §I0N

soLIvIpIsqug sj1 pue pajury Auedmo)) drjqnd 13m0 dud[od 1d.L



[4Y

TI9°S09°sE 88p'7IT £5L6TL'E 015°00T 89¢ 7€9'sT S68°0Z1 P9 TECOT LG6'LEP'T 8TT'SPS'6 0707 1qURIQ TEIV

prPOLL'OE 795°07T LIL'ESP'T SHP'ES wy 0LY0Z 905 01T 9T5'LER0T SORILKT 1SZ'Z85'S 0T0T Awnuep T
puE 0T LU I¢ IV
078°TH'FT £90°LVT 6L6°066'8 99107 6T L7801 6¥0'801 LPST000'ET 019'€88 opET8F'T 6107 Aaenuupy T IV
2mpa yOUq JaN
£8S"08Z'F SE6'97 - - I LIV'LT PE6'TZI SOVLEG'E £r9°9p1 - 0T07 1equIadd( [EIV

ST60v8 $L0°8 - - s 9% 9L6 11 97T £9L LS6'TS - Teoh o 10J
adreyo uoneradsy

8C9°6EH'E T198°81 - - g9 978'7L 8L6'60T TYeI'E 989°€H - 0707 Azenuer §
pue G107 LRquRR(q 1€ IV
(40 - - - - Q] - - - - s[esodsiq

092908 6I8°L - - A4 $L8°C £63°61 TLIgTL 196°0¢ " 1eak o) 10§
a31ero uonepaadaq
TI6'TEIT THOTT - - 14 99681 £30¥%6 0L099¥°T sTLTy - 610¢ Arenueyp [ 3y
tonpaLdaq

) (nmg pupsnoy; uy)
r1IoL slosse UOTJR[fRISU] symd. SAONPA juswdinba juourdinbe Araurtporiy sjme)d puel
BuUrIoISSIUNIoa pue axeds Jofepy 0O £1oj08]
TORONISUOD P SSAYX pue sfoa],
JOpUn 1985y ‘InyreIn,g

SJUIEAYL)S [EIIURLLY PIJBPIOSLO))

07027 10qmad( [€ PAPUS JBIA 913 104

$)UATIAI LIS [BIOUEBTLY Y] 0} SION

saLIeIpIsqng sy pue pajruiry Anedwo)) drpqug 1dmod ausfod Id L




€¢

128°T88'6€ £TH'6ET GLE'STL'E 01S'007 v8S G60'ES 6Y8TVT 6010677 ov9p8S'T 8TT'SPS'6 0THT 1oquata(y TEIV
- - (6517120 - - £61°€ - LLF'66T 680°61 - sIg]sUeI],
61L°1LY'S - 12y e6v'l §90°LYT LIT 016 S9E°TT #98°2€ - £L6'T96°E SUONIPPY
OT'IZ'PE £TH'6ET LIL'ESY'T SPFES L9Y 966°TY ¥BI'0ZT 89L'TS0T 155'S95°T 18Z'285°S 0T0T Alenuep |
puE GIOT 13qUIII( IEIV
(GI3)] - - - - (og) - - - - sfesodsi
- - (£62°781°6) - - 6879 - 88L'9€6°8 912'6£9 - S1ajsTeIL,
00¥vE6D BIETS 1€0°5H9°T 6LT'EE 07 VL 05E8L £90°8¥ - 116°001 SUONIPPY
TEL'SLT'LT SO1°8S1 6L6°066°8 991°0C €92 £6v°6T PET'T0T L16°99¥°ST SEEOT6 OvET8YI 6107 Aenme( {3
S0
(g pupsnoyt u}
le10L s)988L uoye[[EISUl spred SAIMPA yjuewdmbs Juswdmba Azouory syusy pueT
SBupuorsspurmoesaq pue ameds Jofep 29150 KLiopoey .
UORORISUOD pire saIMyX1y pue S[0CT,
Jspun §)assy ‘armypung

SIUAWE}E)S [Eloueul) Aeiedag

0707 19quEada(] T€ POPd 18k 9y} J0 ]
$)UATIIIE]S [RIOURUI] V) 03 SAJON

SOLIBIPISqNS S)I pue payrmr] Auedwio)) dqnd Iomo dud[od IdL



12

(%6°€ - %S°E “6107) %6'E - %T JO SJUaWsIE)S [eloueuyy oyervdos pue
porepi[osuoo st ur uoesi[eNdes B WA ‘(Ajaayoadsas ‘uoljiul [9 1pg puv uotjjiut [9 #HOg 6107 AJeanyoadsar ‘UOT[IW 1 | JyBY PUe UOH[IH {1 JYeg 03 pejuncue
a¥e (707 19qusoa(] ¢ 18 58 Auedwo)) ot pue dnoip 9y3 Jo A10J9B] MOT ) JO UOIIDRISUOD oY} Pue Pue] 91 Jo uonisinboe ay) o) June|si £)500 Suimorioq pasiende))

(uoypL 756
YD (6107) UOIIW €6 N 0} PSIUNOUTE 0707 Joqusos(] ¢ I8 Se osn U [[us sem et Justrdinbe pue juerd payepadop Aqny s Auedwmoy) 213 Jo 1500 [eUISLI0 oY,
8€T'T09°6E 88Y'TIT GLE'STL'E 015'00Z 89p 7€9°6T $68°07T H9°7EE0T LGGLEP'T BIT'SHS'6 0TOT QI TEIV

PrOLL'0E 95'072 LIL'ESH'T Spy'es wy 0LT'0Z 905°0TT 97S'LS8 0T SO8'TLP'T IST'T8S'S 0707 Arsnuep |
pUE GLOZ QU 1€ IV
0T8Ty €90°LPT 6L6'066'8 991702 [T LZSOT 6v0°80T LYS000'ET 019'¢88 OvE TSI 6107 Atenuep [ 3y
PHIDA YOO JINT
£85°08TY €697 - - 911 LOVLT PSETLT 891°LS6'S EP9°OFT - 0707 12quadaq [V

6 0v8 vL0'8 - - [ r9F 9L6'T1 97T €9L LS6CS - Teak a1 10y
aBmp vonewaxlag

859'6€£4°E T98°81 - - s9 978°7T 8L6°601 WTPEI'E 989°€6 - 0207 Asenuep |
PUE GI(Z WU IE IV
(29] - - - - 1) - - - - sjesodsiq

09L°908 618°L - - |87 yL8°E £68°s1 TLI'8TL 196°0§ - JTeak ay) Joj
; 98wy uoneradaq
T16'289°C Tl - - vt 99631 $80°%6 0LO99FT STLTY - 610 Arenuef [ 1y
uoypIda

(rypg punsnoy; uy} -
mor, sjasse uoneje)sut syed SO[OIYIA juewmdmba juowmdinba Kroumpoey SImR[g pue
JuInoIssImINosa(] pue axeds 1ofR]A 2010 K1ojory
UOMINNSwod PUR saInIxy pue s[oo],
J9pun 5JRsSYy ‘axypung]

SHUDWIYE)S [EuBUY ojeredag

0Z07Z 1PqUIdd( T€ PIPUI 18I 3) X0
SJUIUIIIBIS [CIOUBUILJ ST} 0} §AJON

seLIRIpISqng sy pue payrury Auedumo)) squg romoJ ausjo 141,




TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to-the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

10 Leases

As a lessee

Consolidated Separate

financial financial
At 31 December 2020 statements statements
(in thousand Baht)

Right-of-use assets
Land 641,073 641,073
Buildings 530 530
Vehicles 9,016 9,016
Total 650,619 650,619

In 2020, additions to the right-of-use assets of the Group and the Company were Baht 43.19 million and
Baht 43.19 million, respectively.

The Group leases a number of land , buildings and vehicles for 2-30 years, with extension options at
the end of lease term. The rental is payable monthly as specified in the contract.

Extension options

Some property leases contain extension options exercisable by the Group up to one year before the end
of the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension options
in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the lessors. The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options. The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its

control.
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019 2020 2019
' (in thousand Baht)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Depreciation of right-of-use assets:
- Land 31,477 - 31,477 -
- Buildings 377 - 377 -
- Vehicles 3,146 - 3,146 -
Interest on lease liabilities 25,205 - 25,205 -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 8,844 - 8,844 -
Lease expense - 40,022 - 40,022
Contingent rent expense - 865,120 - 865,120

In 2020, total cash outflow for leases of the Group and the Company were Baht 37.83 million
and Baht 37.83 million, respectively. '
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

11 Interest-bearing liabilities

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Current
Short-term loans from financial -
institutions 239,625 - 239,625 -
Current debentures 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
Lease liabilities
(2019: Finance lease liabilities) 14,849 - 14,849 -
Total interest-bearing liabilities
-~ current 4,254,474 - 4,254,474 -
Non-Current
Debentures 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000
Lease liabilities
(2019: Finance lease liabilities) 645,181 - 645,181 -
Total interest-bearing liabilities
- non-current 8,045,181 8,000,000 8,645,181 8,000,000
Total 12,899,655 8,000,000 12,899,655 8,000,000

The periods to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities as at 31 December were as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Within 1 year 4,254,474 - 4,254,474 -
1 -5 years 8,066,789 8,000,000 8,066,789 8,000,000
After 5 years 578,392 - 578,392 -
Total 12,899,655 8,000,000 12,899,655 8,000,000

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has no unutilised credit facilities.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

12 Trade accounts payable

Note
Related parties 4
Other parties
Total

13  Other payables

Retention payable

Other payables - Machine
Accrued expenses

Deposit from sales and guarantee
Others

Total

14 Other current liabilities

Payable to Revenue Department
Suspend output tax

Others

Total

15 Non-current provisions for employee benefits

Statement of financial position
Non-current provisions for:
Post-employment benefits

Year ended 31 December

Statement of comprehensive income:
Recognised in profit ox loss:
Post-employment benefits

Recognised in other comprehensive
income:
Actuarial losses recognised in the year

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

(in thousand Baht)
169,026 212,430 169,026 212,430
263,490 227,403 263,490 227,403
432,516 439,833 432,516 439,833

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

(in thousand Baht)
407,525 1,058,706 407,525 1,058,706
167,502 363,225 167,502 363,225
76,875 78,859 76,732 78,797
6,023 6,799 6,023 6,799
133,291 76,371 133,227 76,371
791,216 1,583,960 791,009 1,583,898

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 _ 2019 2020 2019

(in thousand Baht)
33,092 36,578 33,092 36,578
99,306 103,450 99,306 103,450
6,659 6,048 6,659 6,048
139,057 146,076 139,657 146,076
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
152,705 151,119 152,705 151,119
2,978 37,408 2,978 37,408
- 30,759 - 30,759
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Defined benefit plan
The Group operate defined benefit plans based on the requirement of Thai Labour Protection Act B.E.
2541 (1998) to provide retirement benefits to employees based on pensionable remuneration and length

of service.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations.

Consolidated Separate
financizal statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
At 1 January 151,119 87,698 151,119 87,698
Include in profit or loss:
Current service cost and interest on
obligation 2,978 37,408 2,978 37,408
Included in other comprehensive
income
Actuarial loss - 30,759 - 30,759
Other
Benefit paid (1,392) (4,746) (1,392) {4,746)
At 31 December 152,705 151,119 152,705 151,119

Actuarial gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income were mainly arose from the
change of employee turnover, discount rate and future salary growth.

Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted

averages).
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(%%)
Discount rate 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Future salary growth 2.46 6.66 2.46 6.66

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables.

At 31 December 2020, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 27 years
(2019: 27 years).

59



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

16

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below.

Consolidated Separate
Financial statements Financial statements
(in thousand Baht)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

At 31 December 2020
Discount rate (1% movement) (12,218) 14,367 (12,218) 14,367
Future salary growth

(1% movement) 11,814 (10,191) 11,814 (10,191)
At 31 December 2019
Discount rate (1% movement) (20,390) 24,996 (20,390) 24,996
Future salary growth

(1% movement) 21,733 (18,337) 21,733 (18,337}

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the
plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Decommissioning costs

Consclidated and

Separate
financial statements
(in thousand Baht)

At 1 January 2019 167,958
Provisions made 88,897
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 256,855
Provisions made 8,079
At 31 December 2020 264,934
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
Non-current 256,855
At 31 December 2020
Non-current 264,954
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

17 Share capital

Par value 2020 2019
per share  Number Amount Number Amount
(in Baht) (thousand shares / thousand Baht)
Authorised
At 31 December
- ordinary shares 1 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000
Issued and paid
At 1 Jannary
- ordinary shares 1 3,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000
At 31 December. ‘
- ordinary shares l 8.400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000

18 Reserves
Reserves comprise:
Appropriations of profit
Legal reserve
Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 Section 116 requires that a public company shall
allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a
reserve account (“legal reserve®), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the
registered authorised capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
As at 31 December 2020, the Company allocated profit from operation to legal reserve in amount of
Baht 76 million, the total legal reserve are Baht 840 million. (2019: the Company allocated profit from
operation to legal reserve in amount of Baht 230 million, the total legal reserve are Baht 764 million)
Other components of equity

Currency translation differences

The currency translation differences account within equity comprises all foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Movements in reserves

Movements in reserves are shown in the statements of changes in equity.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements '
For the year ended 31 December 2020

19

Segment information and disaggregation of revenue
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

e Energy & Utilities
s Petrol and gas stations

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is
measured based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports that are
reviewed by the Group’s CODM. Segment profit before tax is used to measure performance as
management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

62




£9

-owm ul ymod © je st dnois) ey Jo TOTUS 0091 SNUSAST JO

Furum pue ‘SeLnunod ugIeIo) ‘Ul payeoo] S}esse 10 ‘WOIY PIALISP SANUIARL [ELI]RUI OU 9F¢ 218U, ‘[RUOHRIISNI PUE O1SSWOP 110q porelodiosut sem dnoip oY,

06L°80LY 900°879°y

SSE601 965°66
(££8908) (sz6°5L8)
(9L¥°651) (Z81°582)

1ea£ o1 10J asuadxa Xe) dUI0dUL 2A0J3q YOI
S1I9I0

noneroardacy

$1S09 20U

PBL'SIS’S LIS'€69°S TOTTLS0T  0SE'6ITTT - - T0TTLS 0T 0SE6ITTT [e}0L,
9L6'C 18D 80L°61L LISTES - . - 80L°6TL L9S'TES suorels se3 pue [oned
808°C95°S 1£€°669°S £6¥'158°6 £8.°985°01 - - £6%°168°6 £8L°985°01 semI[n) % £81004
(1yvg puvsnoy; uy)
610¢ 020¢ 610T 0202 610T 0202 610C 020T dLaqutaoaq I£
. papus wad 213 L0
uopenatdap SNUIAII JUIUTIS [EI0 ], AMUIAAI JUIW FIS-T)UY SI9UIG)SHD [RULI9IXD

pue xe} ‘ysaraguy d10Jaq (s50))
ygoad yuamdas opqertodey

WO.AJ 9NUIAYY

JULUIA}E)S [EOUEUL PIIEPI[OSUO))

synsaL juauiSas ajquirodsy  (v)

0707 12qUI223(] TE Papue I8 31) 10
§)TATII)L)S [RIIULTI] 91) 0} S3JON

soLreIpIsqng sy pue payury Auedwro)) s1qug 121404 dswdjod Id.L



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

()

20

21

For the year ended 31 December

Energy & Utilities

Petrol and gas stations

Total

Elimination of inter-segment (profit) loss

Profit (loss) before income tax expense for the year

Reportable segment financial position

Energy & Utilities
Petrol and gas stations

Unallocated assets
Total assets

Geographical segments

Consolidated financial statements

Reportable segment
profit (loss) before tax
2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
4,655,122 4,713,032
(27,125) (4,265)
4,627,997 4,708,767
9 . 23
4,628,006 4,708,790

Segment assets

2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
40,146,047 34,198,184
72,703 52,198
40,218,750 34,250,382
3,556,402 3,602,192
43,775,152 37,852,574

The Group was incorporated both domestic and international. "There are no material revenues derived

from, or assets located in, foreign countries.

Major customer

Revenues from 2 customers of the Group’s represents approximately Baht 10,611 million (2079:

Baht 9,882 million) of the Group’s total revenues.

Investment income

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Interest income 28,819 63,570 21,386 60,523
Others 14,041 15,124 14,041 15,148
Total 42,860 78,694 35,427 75,671
Qther income
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 . 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Other income-claim insurance 99,587 43,048 99,587 43,048
Revenue from machine rental 141,363 04,317 141,363 94,317
Others 40,842 26,928 40,815 26,905
Total 281,792 164,293 281,765 164,270
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

22  Distribution costs

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Personnel expenses 28,205 31,100 28,205 31,100
Utilities expenses 8,355 10,921 8,355 10,921
Rental 1,455 10,159 1,455 10,159
Depreciation 9,643 2,976 9,643 2,976
Others 18,779 20,523 18,779 20,523
Total P 66,437 75,679 66,437 75,679
23 Administrative expenses
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Personnel expenses 69,430 71,709 69,429 71,709
Shared service expenses 41,884 40,316 41,760 40,213
Professional fees 15,076 38,062 14,999 38,002
Registration fees 26,400 27,7105 26,392 20,301
Depreciation 2,512 17,186 2,512 17,186
Insurance expenses 3,690 3,170 3,690 3,170
Donation 65,052 62,901 65,052 62,901
Others 208,685 171,101 208,643 170,960
Total 432,729 432,150 432,477 424,442
24 Employee benefit expenses
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Management
Wages and salaries 24,498 25,485 24,498 25,485
Defined benefit plans 52 441 52 441
Others 20,718 20,146 20,718 20,146
45,268 46,072 45,268 46,072
Employee
Wages and salaries 515,544 524,919 515,544 524,919
Defined benefit plans 2,926 12,295 2,926 12,295
Others 43,955 46,044 43,955 46,044
562,425 583,258 562,425 583,258
Total 607,693 629,330 607,693 629,330
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Defined contribution plans

The defined contribution plans comprise provident funds established by the Company for its employees.
Membership to the funds is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at
rates ranging 3% of their basic salaries and by the Company at rates ranging 3% of the employees’ basic
salaries. The provident funds are regjstered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities and are

managed by a licensed Fund Manager.

25 Expenses by nature

The statements of income include an analysis of expenses by function. Expenses by nature disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of various TFRS were as follows:

Included in cost of sales of goods:

Changes in inventories of finished goods

and work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation
Included in distribution costs:
Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation
Included in administrative expenses:
Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation

26 Finance costs

Note

Interest expense:

Short-term loans from financial
institutions

Debentures

Lease

‘Total interest expense

Other

Less amounts included in the cost
of qualifying assets:
- Construction contracts
work in progress
Net

10

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

(in thousand Baht)

148,571 266,242 148,571 266,242
3,838,801 3,299,697 3,838,801 3,299,697
510,059 526,521 510,059 526,521
863,770 786,711 863,770 786,711
28,205 31,100 28,205 31,100
9,643 2,976 9,643 2,976
69,429 71,709 69,429 71,709
2,512 17,186 2,512 17,186

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019

- (in thousand Baht)

11,670 - 11,838 -
354,510 '211,616 354,510 211,616

25,205 - 25,205 -
391,385 211,616 391,533 211,616
8,080 8,374 8,080 8,374
399,465 219,990 399,633 219,990

(114,283) (60,514) (114,283) (60,514)

285,182 159,476 285,350 159,476
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

27 Income tax

Consolidated Separate
Income tax recognised in profit or loss financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Current tax expense
Current year 107,512 98,129 107,143 08,129
Adjustment for prior years 5,921 (2,987) 5,921 (2,987)
113,433 95,142 113,064 95,142
Deferred tax expense
Movements in temporary differences 8,748 6,840 8,748 6,840
Total income tax expense 122,181 101,982 121,812 101,982
Consolidated and separate financial statements
2020 2019
Tax Tax
Before  (expense) Netof Before (expense) Net of
Income tax tax benefit tax tax benefit tfax
(in thousand Baht)
Recognised in other
comprehensive income
Defined benefit plan
actuarial gains (losses) - - - (30,759) 6,152 (24,607)
Total - - - (30,759) 6,152 (24,607)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate Consolidated financial statements
2020 2019
Rate (in thousand Rate (in thousand
%) Bahy) (%) Baht)
Profit before income tax expense 4,628,006 4,708,790
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 20 925,601 20 - 941,758
Double allowance and deduction (31,646) (24,507)
Profit was derived from promoted activities (812,608) (822,148)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 34,913 9,866
Under (over) provided in prior years 5,921 (2,987)
Total 2.6 122,181 2.2 101,982

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Separate financial statements

2020 2019
Rate (in thousand Rate (in thousand
(%) Baht) (%) Baht)

Profit before income tax expense 4,627,636 4,713,452
Income tax using the Thai corporation tax rate 20 025,527 20 042,690
Double allowance and deduction (31,941) (24,507)
Profit was derived from promoted activities (812,608) (822,148)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 34,913 8,934
Under (over) provided in prior years 5,921 (2,987
Total 2.6 121,812 2.2 101,982
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Consolidated and Separate financial statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2020 2019 2020 2019

(in thousand Baht)
Total 82,322 92,388 (60) (1,377)
Set off of tax (60) (1,377) 60 1,377
Net deferred tax assets 82,262 91,011 - -

Movements in deferred tax balances are as follows:

Consolidated and Separate financial statements

{Charged) / Credited to
Atl Other At 31
January comprehensive  December
2020 Profit or loss income 2020
(in thousand Baht)
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 63,511 (11,468) - 52,043
Inventories 4,900 (797) - 4,103
Provisions for employee benefits 23,977 317 - 24,294
Lease liabilities - 1,882 - 1,882
Total 92,388 (10,066) - 82,322
Deferred tax liabilities
Revaluation on fair value of financial
assets (1.377) 1,318 - (60)
Total (1,377 1,318 - (60)
Net 91,011 (8,748) - 82,262
Consolidated and Separate financial statements
{Charged) / Credited to
Atl Other At31
January comprehensive  December
2019 Profit or loss income 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment 75,338 (11,827 - 63,511
Inventories 4,900 - - 4,900
Provisions for employee benefits 11,293 6,532 6,152 23,977
Revaluation on fair value of trading
investment 168 (168) - -
Total 91,699 (5,463) 6,152 92,388
Deferred tax liabilities
Revaluation on fair value of trading '
investment - (1,377) - (1,377)
Total - (1,377) - (1,377)
Net 91,699 (6,840 6,152 91,011
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28 Promotional privileges
By virtue of the provisions of the Industrial Investment Promotion Act of B.E. 2520, the Company has
been granted privileges by the Board of Investment relating to natural gas stations, power plants and
fuel production from garbage and waste. The privileges granted include:

(a) exemption from payment of import duty on machinery and equipment approved by the Board;

(b) exemption from payment of corporate income tax for certain operations for a period of 8 years
from the dates on which the income is first derived from such operations;

(c) a50% reduction in the normal income tax rate on the net profit derived from certain operations for
a period of 5 years, commencing from the expiry date in (b} above;

(d) a deduction of twice the actual transportation, electrical and water supply expenses for a period of
10 years from the respective revenues and a 25% reduction of the capital expenditure for the
installation or the construction of the facilities in addition to the normal depreciation; and

(¢) losses occur during the period could be carried forward 5 years commencing from the expiry date
of the privileges to deducted from the profit that occur after the period of exemption of cooperate

income tax.

As a promoted company, the Company must coply with certain terms and conditions prescribed in the
promotional certificates.

Summary of revenue from promoted and non-promoted businesses:

Consolidated and Separate financial statements

2020 2019
Non- Non-
Promoted promoted Promoted promoted
businesses businesses Total businesses businesses Total
(in thousand Baht)
Domestic sales 9,581,155 1,538,195 11,119,350 8,799,853 1,771,348 10,571,201
Total 9,581,155 1,538,195 11,119,350 8,799,853 1,771,348 10,571,201

29 Basic earnings per share

The calculations of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were based
on the profit for the years attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the years as follows:

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Restated)

(in thousand Baht / thousand shares)
Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Compary (basic) 4,505,824 4,606,808 4,505,824 4,606,808
Weighted average number of ordinary '

shares outstanding (basic) 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000 8,400,000
Earnings per share (basic) (in Baht) 0.536 0.548 0.536 0.548
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30

31
()

Dividends

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 19 April 2019, the
shareholders approved the appropriation of 2018 annual dividend at Baht 0.40 per share, amounting to
Baht 3,360 million. After a deduction of the interim dividends of Baht 0.30 per share which were paid
to the Company’s shareholders in 2018, the remaining dividends of Baht 0.10 per share, totalling Baht
840 million. The dividend was paid to the shareholders on 3 May 2019.

At the Board of Director’s meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2019, the Board of Director’s
meeting passed a resolution to declare the interim dividend payment from retained earnings as of
30 June 2019, in amount of Baht 0.10 per share for the Baht 8,400 million common shares, amounting
to Baht 840 million. The dividend was paid to the shareholders on 13 September 2019.

At the Board of Director’s meeting of the Company held on 29 November 2019, the Board of Director’s
meeting passed a resolution to declare the interim dividend payment from retained earnings as of 30
September 2019, in amount of Bath 0.10 per share for the Baht 8,400 million common shares, amounting
to Baht 840 million. The dividend was paid to shareholders on 27 December 2019,

At the annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on 30 July 2020, the shareholders
acknowledged the interim dividend payment of 2019 annual dividend at Baht 0.40 per share, amounting
to Baht 3,360 million. After a deduction of the interim dividends of Baht 0.20 per share which paid to
the Company’s shareholders in 2019, the remaining dividends of Baht 0.20 per share, totalling Baht
1,680 million. The dividend was paid to the shareholders on 15 May 2020 and no further dividend
payment shall be made from the fiscal year 2019.

At the Board of Director’s meeting of the Company held on 25 August 2020, the Board of Director’s
meeting passed a resolution to declare the interim dividend payment from retained earnings as of
30 June 2020, in amount of Baht 0.12 per share for the Baht 8,400 million common shares, amounting
to Baht 1,008 million. The dividend was paid to the shareholders on 22 September 2020.

Financizal instruments

Carrying amounts and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for

financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Carrying
amount
At 31 December 2019
Financial assets measured at
fair value
Debt securities held for
trading 1,329,349
Debt securities held for
trading (Private funds) 1,321,347
Financial assets and
[inancial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Debt securities held to
maturity 186,532
Debentures 8,000,600
Carrying
amount
At 31 December 2019
Financial assets measured at
fair value
Debt securities held for
trading 1,329,349
Debt securities held for
trading (Private funds) 1,321,347
Financial assets and
Sfinancial liabilities not
measured af fair value
"~ Debt securities held to
maturity 5,261
Debentures 8,000,000

Consolidated financial statements

Fair value
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousand Baht)
200,249 1,129,100. - 1,329,349
- 1,321,347 - 1,321,347
- 187,099 - 187,099
- 8,091,745 - 8,001,745
Separate financial statements
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousand Baht)
200,249 1,129,100 - 1,329,349 °
- 1,321,347 - 1,321,347
- 5,667 - 5,667
- 8,001,745 - 8,091,745

73



TPI Polene Power Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Measurement of fair values

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorised into different Jevels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

o Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

Tf the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Valuation technigues

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values.

. Type
Corporate debt securities

Corporate debt securities
(Private funds)

Debenture

Valuation technique

Thai Bond Market Association Government Bond Yield Curve as
of the reporting date. :

Market comparison/discounted cash flow: The fair value is
estimated considering (i) current or recent quoted prices for
identical securities in markets that are not active and (i1} a net
present value calculated using discount rates derived from quoted
prices of securities with similar maturity and credit rating that are
traded in active markets, adjusted by an illiquidity factor.

A valuation technique incorporating observable market data
which is adjusted with counterparty credit risk (excluding own
credit risk) and other risks to reflect true economic value.

() Movement of marketable equity and debt securities

Marketable equity and debt
securities

2020

Current financial assets
Debt securities measured at
- FVTPL

Total

2019

Current investments
Trading securities
Total

Consolidated and Separate financial statements

Increase Fair value At 3l
At 1 January (decrease) adjustment December
(in thousand Baht)
1,521,596 (221,234) (3,980) 1,296,382
1,521,596 (221,234) (3,980) 1,296,382
2,530,465 (1,016,848) 7,979 1,521,596
2,530,465 (1,016,848) 7,979 1,521,596
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(¢) Financial risk management policies
Risk management framework

The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework. The board of directors has established the risk management
committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.
The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

The Group audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal avdit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(c.1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s
receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

{c.1.1) Trade accounts receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the
credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and
country in which customers operate. Detail of concentration of revenue are included in
notei9 (b).

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk from trade accounts receivables by establishing
a maximum payment period of 30 days.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade accounts receivables and contract assets.
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Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
Allowance for Allowance for
Trade accounts  impairment  Trade accounts  impairment
At 31 December 2020 receivables losses receivables losses
(in thousand Baht)

Related parties :
Within credit terms 217,881 - 217,881 -
Overdue:

1-30 days ' 170,283 - 170,283 -

31-60 days 138,209 - 138,209 -

More than 60 days 373,895 - 373,895 -
Total 900,268 - 900,268 -
Less allowance for impairment - -

Net 900,268 900,268

Other related parties

Within credit terms 1,525,077 - 1,525,077 -
Overdue:

1-30 days 341 - 341 -
Total 1,525,418 - 1,525,418 -
Less allowance for impairment - -

Net 1,525,418 1,525,418
Net total - 2,425,686 2,425,686

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past 3 years. These rates are multiplied by
scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

Consolidated Separate

financial financial
Trade accounts receivables - related parties statements statements
(in thousand Baht)
At 31 December 2019
Within credit terms 217,446 217,446
Overdue: )
Less than 3 months 340,756 340,756
558,202 - 558,202
Less allowance for doubtful accounts - -
Net 558,202 558,202
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Trade accounts receivables - other parties

At 31 December 2019
Within credit terms
Overdue:

Less than 3 months

Less allowance for dou!:tful accounts
Net
Total

Consolidated Separate
financial financial
statements statements
(in thousand Baht)
1,589,635 1,589,635
439 439
1,590,074 1,590,074
1,590,074 1,590,074
2,148,276 2,148,276

The Group requires various customers to provide cash, and bank guarantees as collateral.

The normal credit term granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 30 days.

(c.2) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporxting
date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest payments and
exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Consolidated and Separate financial statements

Contractual cash flows
More than 1
year but
Carrying 1 year lessthanS  More than 5
At 31 December 2020 amount or less years years Total
(in thousand Baht)

Non-derivative financial

liabilities
Trade payables 432,516 428,998 3,518 - 432,516
Loans from financial

institutions 239,625 239,625 - - 239,625
Lease liabilities 660,030 39,927 153,424 876,905 1,070,256
Debentures 12,000,000 4,000,000 8,000,000 - 12,000,000

13,332,171 4,708,550 8,156,942 876,905 13,742,397
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Consolidated and Separate financial statements

Effective After 1 year
interest Within 1 but within 5
rate year years After 5 years Total
(% per
annum) (in thousand Baht)
2020
Current
Short-term loans from
financial institutions 1.70 239,625 - - 239,625
Debentures 3.90 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
Non-current
Debentures 3.50 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Debentures 3.90 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Total 4,239,625 8,000,000 - 12,239,625
2019
Noa-current
Debentures 3.90 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Debentures 3.50 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Total - 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
(c.3) Market risk

The Group is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency
exchange rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Group
does not hold or issue derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.

(¢.3.1) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases of spare parts, supplies,
machines and equipment.
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Consolidated Separate
Exposure to foreign currency financial statements financial statements
at 31 December 2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
United States Dollars
Cash and cash equivalents 3,234 3,253 81 81
Other payables (473,491 (1,360,994) (473,491) (1,360,994)
(470,257) (1,357,741) (473,410) (1,360,913)
EURO
Cash and cash equivalents 7 6 7 6
Other payables (8,419) - (8,419) -
(8,412) 6 (8,412) 6
Others -
Cash and cash equivalents 302 - 334 302 334
302 334 302 334
Gross balance sheet exposure (478,367) (1,357,401) (481,320) (1,360,573)

(c.3.2) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the
results of the Group’s operations and its cash flows because debt securities and loan interest -
rates are mainly fixed. The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from its
debenture (see note 11). The Group mitigates this risk by ensuring that the majority of its
debt securities and borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board
monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as result from operating activities
divided by total shareholders’ equity, excluding non-controlling interests and also monitors the

level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Commitments with non-related parties

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2020 2019 2020 2019
(in thousand Baht)
Capital commitments
Contracted but not provided for:
Agreements for construction, machine
and equipment 458,104 281,061 416,701 281,061
Other commitments
Short-term lease commitments 500 5,707 500 5,707
Unused letters of credit 97,915 498,667 97,915 498,667
Bank guarantees 117,113 10,827 117,113 10,827
Total 215,528 515,201 215,528 515,201
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Power Purchase Agreement

The Company entered into Power Purchase Agreements, which uses garbage as fuel and waste heat from
the cement production process as a fuel supplement, in term of “Non-firm” with Blectricity Generating
Authority of Thailand (“EGAT”) for the period of 5 years since start trading month. The contracts can
be extended for a period of 5 years subject to the provision of written notice to the counterparty not less
than 30 days before the contracts expired. Regarding to the agreements, the Company obtained adder
form base tariff of electricity for period of 7 years since start trading date. The Company has to comply
with conditions as specified in the Power Purchase Agreements. At present, the Company has
agreements with Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand as follows:

Power Purchase Agreement Contracted Start trading

Capacity date
1% agreement (7 November 2014 - 31 December 2019) 18 Megawatt 16 January
1% agreement (extended) (1 January 2020 - 31 December 2024) 5 2015

2 agreement (13 November 2013 - 31 July 2020)
2% goreement (extended) (1 August 2020 - 31 July 2025) 55 Megawait | 6 August 2015
34 goreement (17 August 2017 - 31 March 2023) 90 Megawaft 5 April 2018

Litigation

On 16 December 2019, individuals in total of 222 people sued Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC)
of al to the Central Administrative Court which the Company was listed as the 5th Defendant. The
Plaintiffs requested that the approval of Environmental and Health Impact Assessment (EHIA) report
for the project of 150 megawatts thermal power plant, the license to operate electricity generating
business and the construction approval of the Company be revoked. The Plaintiffs also requested that
the Court take evidence out of Court and issued an interim measure and ordering that the electricity
generating system be temporarily stopped until the final decision is reached.

On 25 December 2019, the Court inquired both Parties in considering the request for interim measure
and rendered its decision on 28 January 2020 denied the request for interim measure.

Subsequently, On 31 January 2020, the Court ordered to accept the complaint and request the Company
to file the answers within the time limit. The case is under the preparation of answers.

On 7 December 2020, the Court sent the objection to the answer of the 5t Defendant (the Company)
and requested the Company to submit additional answer to the Court within the prescribed period which
shall be due on 20 February 2021, the case is under process of preparation of the additional answer.

The Company’s legal consultant considered the complaint and its appendixes and hereby opines that the
Company lawfully received the license to operate the electricity generating business and the
construction approval from the competent authorities. The complaint of the Plaintiffs is untrue. As the
case is in the preparation for answer, the Company has causes to relieve itself of any liability generated
from the complaint depending on the Central Administrative Court Decision. Moreover, the Company
has pressed charges against the 222 Plaintiffs to the Muak Lek police station, Saraburi, for taking the
false information to charge the person in the Court. The case is under the investigation of the police.
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Other

The Company purchased plots of land in Chana district, Songkhla province, to develop the Security,
Prosperity, Sustainability Triangle Model City 4 project, in Chana district, Songkhla Province, as the
Future Industrial City, according to the Thai Government Policy to develop and administer the southern
border provinces for peace and security of the country with the cabinet approval following the motion
from Southern Border Provinces Administrative Center (SBPAC) requesting the government to include
Chana district, Songkhla province, specifically to be a part of southern special economic zone under
Southern Border Provinces Administration Act, B.E. 2553, and the Company to propose investment plan
worth Baht 396,000 million to extend prosperity to the provinces by creating employment for the people
and economic benefits to such area. On May 7, 2019, the cabinet approved the development of such
projects and assigned the SBPAC and other relevant authorities to proceed with the project without
delay.

On March 6, 2020, the SBPAC sent a letter to the Company informing the Company that the SBPAC
has proposed such issues to the Southern Corridor Strategy Development Committee (the “SCSDC”)
meeting no.1/2562 on October 31, 2019, in which the SCSDC approved the proposal, and thereafter on
January 21, 2020 the cabinet has acknowledged and approved the SCSDC resolution. The SBPAC also
coordinated with the relevant authorities involved with the private sector investment plan, i.e., the
Department of Public Works and Town & Country Planning, Ministry of Interior, and Songkhla
Provincial Administration Organization, to consider the change of the city plan color for. the project
benefits of usage, to comply with the urgent investment plan as proposed by the private sector and to
have the Ministry of Energy to consider and support the production of electricity from new power plant
to cope with the industrial development under the Country Power Development Plan (PDP),
to be revised according to the cabinet approval allowing the private sector i.e. TPIPP, to invest and sell
3,700 MW of electricity to government enterprise (EGAT) in this Model Futuristic Advanced Industrial
City, which has received approval to change the city plan color in Chana District Songkla with the proper
approval from authority (Office of the energy regulatory commission) including the proposed condition
for the private sector to conduct feasibility study on the Environmental Impact Assessment : EIA) and/or
the Environmental and Health Impact Assessment : EHIA), as the case may be, so that the project
developments could run in paralle] from the year 2021 onwards.

The SBPAC has made “Strategic Environment Assessment (SEA)” according to Nation Economic
Development Board (the “NEDB”) which is an analytical and particularly process to support the
formulation of development policies, plans and programs. The goal of which is to balance and optimize
economic social and environment considerations based on the principles of sustainable development,
The SCSDC; whereby the Prime Minister is the Chairman, and the Deputy Prime Minister, Gen Pravit
Wongsuwan, as the authorized person to act on behalf of the Prime Minister to implement the SEA plan,
approved the project of TPIPP, and the Cabinet resolved to acknowledge the resolution deemed as the
Cabinet’s approval of the project in accordance with the plan and policy of the Security, Prosperity,
Sustainability Triangle Model City 4 project of the SBPAC. In addition, the SCSDC -has resolved to
expedite the Department of Public Works to change the City Plan color from green zone to purple zone,
and that the Ministry of Energy, Energy Regulatory Commission (“ERC™), and state-owned enterprises
to complete the PPA as soon as possible (within March 2021), and it is the Company's responsibility to
complete the Environmental Impact Assessment (“EIA™) and Environmental and Health Impact
Assessment (“EHIA™).
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In case of mass coordination, public and civil society in 3 sub-districts of Chana District, Songkhla
Province, the Company was requested to coordinate and work closely with the working group as
established by the SBPAC, under the proposals of local residents to support working process of the
private sector through public sector to reinforce unity of the task force to be beneficial for the economic
development and the quality of local people genuinely to be in line with the objectives of the project in
Chana District, Songkhla Province, as an exclusive perfect fully-integrated economic zone, which is an
important mechanism to drive the development of the entire fully-integrated economy of the lower
southern region, which can link to the southern border provinces and other regions of Thailand and
neighboring countries, as well as to link economic development to other countries around the world. This
will make the southern border provinces to be safer and be a vital part to support the solution to the unrest
in the southern border provinces and to accommodate the futire economic and social development,
similar to other regions of Thailand in the long run. The SBPAC also requested that the Company to
carry on with all related issues to strictly comply with the relevant legal issues, cabinet resolution, rules
and government agencies’ processes.

On January 25, 2021, Songkhla Provincial Administration Organization announced the Company as the
wimner of the bidding for jointly private procurement in the construction and management of solid waste
disposal system, Songkhla Provincial Administration Organization by Tender Method. The winner of
the bidding will receive tipping fee from waste disposal of Baht 400 per ton (adjustable upward by 10%
in every 3 year) and receive revenue from electricity sales derived from waste disposal under a power
purchase agreement of 7.92 MW for the period of 20 years, at the rate of Baht 5.78 per unit for the first
8 years and Baht 5.08 per unit for the next consecutive 12 years respectively.
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